Frequently Asked Questions 
RFA No. GDA-04-001

Q:
We might not be able to submit our RFA proposal by the March 15 deadline.  Is it possible to get an extension since our work will greatly contribute to USAID’s mission?
A:
We reserve the right to consider alliance proposals that come in after the March 15th due date, but we can make no assurances that we will.  We expect a significant number of submissions by that date, and we strongly encourage interested parties to get their proposals in before the deadline.

Q:
Could you please send me the grant forms for this funding opportunity?

A:
The only forms not specifically included in the RFA are the SF424, 424a, and 424b for which a web site reference was included in the RFA: <http://www.usaid.gov/pubs/ads/sfforms.html>.  All other items are to be supplied in a written manner in accordance with the instructions and with the items contained within the RFA. 

Q:
Could you send me any related information that will help us to understand what is required for the RFA?
A:
The best source for general information on public-private alliances is the GDA Secretariat webpage at USAID: <http://www.usaid.gov/gda>.  Please review the RFA and the GDA web site and then contact GDA with any specific questions you may have (see contact information provided in the RFA, page 10).

Q:
We are a Land-Grant Institution; are we eligible to participate?
A:
Your organization is able to submit an application.  The universe of potential applicants is very broad.  Please refer to the Eligibility and Proposal Criteria (RFA, page 6 – 12), as there are requirements that all applications must meet.
Q:
Can an organization submit more than one application for this RFA announcement?
A:
Yes, an organization can submit as many applications as they wish.  Please make sure that each is consistent with the guidelines set out in the RFA.

Q:
I've been unable to find a link on the web for RFA-GDA-04-001.  Can you please send it to me electronically?  
A:
For an electronic copy of the RFA, please see the GDA website at <http://www.usaid.gov/gda> or under ‘Full RFA’ at the following site: <http://www.fedgrants.gov/Applicants/AID/OP/WAS/RFA-GDA-04-001/Attachments.html#Full+Announcement+1>.  

Q:  
Page 12 of the RFA states that attachments should include a list of all contracts, grants, or cooperative agreements involving similar or related programs over the past three years.  Is a list with the requested information acceptable, or should we also fill out Contractor Performance Reports for each program?
A:  
A list with the relevant information will be sufficient; you do not need to submit Contractor Performance Reports.

Q:        Could you please clarify the requirement that the partner contribution must include private (meaning non-governmental) resources at least equal to 25% of the value of the expected USAID resources?
A:   
The 25% refers to “non-public” cash or in-kind resources.   For example, an NGO with an alliance proposal requests $1 million in USAID funds to be matched by a $2 million contribution from another partner such as the World Bank or a bilateral donor like the UK Department for International Development.  This would be considered a “donor coordination” activity, not a public-private alliance (PPA).  To qualify as a PPA, at least 25% of the amount of the requested USAID funds (in this example $250,000) would have to come from private (non-public) resources.  Private resources could come from corporations, foundations, or the NGO themselves, if they do private fund raising.
Q:
Which countries have priorities in agriculture, biosecurity, and/or disaster prevention projects?
A:
For more information on country priorities, please review the individual Mission websites at <http://www.usaid.gov/missions>.  The RFA appendices may also have information on specific country priorities.  
Q:
The RFA states that missions and bureaus may issue solicitations for their 

own particular alliance-building activities.  Where can I find information on mission and bureau solicitations?  
A:
For other USAID competitive grant solicitations please refer to USAID postings at <http://www.fedgrants.gov>.  Missions overseas and offices within USAID/Washington post their competitive solicitations at that site.  One can also submit unsolicited applications to USAID at any time even though the Agency has limited discretionary funds—please see the following for those procedures: <http://www.usaid.gov/policy/ads/300/30354s1.pdf>.  If you consider the latter, I’d recommend reviewing the site below on Agency objectives: <http://www.usaid.gov/policy/ads/300/30354s1.pdf>.

Q:
What is the procedure to develop proposals for a USAID non-mission country, such as Botswana?  

A:
The answer to this question will vary depending on the country.  For many non-mission countries, the first step is to contact the mission that covers work in that country.  In Botswana, that is the Regional Center for South Africa (http://www.usaid.gov/locations/sub-saharan_africa/countries/rcsa/), which will be able to work with you to determine if your project fits with their objectives.  

Q:
I am participating in an alliance in the health sector in Zambia and, upon reading the RFA, it seems that health-sector proposals are treated differently and should be submitted to the USAID Mission (i.e. Zambia) instead of the USAID Global Health Bureau.  Is this correct? 

A:
Under this RFA, health proposals will not be funded from USAID Washington (i.e., the Global Health Bureau or the GDA Secretariat).  Health proposals may be welcome at the mission level; please contact the appropriate mission to determine their current priorities in the health care field (contacts are listed in Annex E of the RFA). 

Q:
In the proposal we are developing, one of the proposed private sector partners is an Indian firm.  How are non-U.S. partners viewed?
A:
Non-US organizations can be alliance partners and can contribute resources to an alliance regardless of program location.  If the alliance partner is also being proposed to be a recipient of USAID funds, then local firms within the proposed program country are usually acceptable.  If a non-U.S. partner is being proposed as a recipient of USAID funds for a country program outside of its own country, then the decision will depend on the cognizant mission for the program.

Q:
Our organization is developing a partnership with a foundation and an NGO.  At the time we submit our proposal, what type of documentation will we need from our funding and implementing partners?
A:  
Please see the list of suggested attachments on page 12 of the RFA, which includes a draft letter of intent that describes roles, responsibilities, and contributions of each of the alliance partners.  You may also choose to ask your partners to submit documentation of their intent to participate in the alliance.

Q:
Do the financial contributions from private partners have to be entirely in cash, or can they also be in the form of services, equipment, vehicles, etc.?
A:
In-kind resources such as services, property, equipment, and supplies are valuable contributions.  Alliance proposals must clearly specify what each party is contributing and indicate the cash value of in-kind support.  In addition, please see the “Proposal Instructions and Criteria” section and note that at least some portion of the leveraging must be in the form of cash and the total value of private funds should be at least equal to 25% of the value of USAID resources sought.

Q:
Does the cash contribution from alliance partners have to be made available at the beginning of the project or can the sums be allocated periodically if such a commitment is made among the partners?  

A:
The appropriate timing of contributions from partners may be proposed by the alliance partners, and it is acceptable for funds to be disbursed periodically over the length of the project. 

Q
Does the alliance have to be formalized at the time of application? 

A:
No, the alliance does not have to be formalized at the time of application, but the level of partner commitment will be evaluated.  As discussed in the RFA, each application will be evaluated on whether the alliance brings new actors to the table with proven track records in their particular area of expertise and experience working in partnership with others.  In addition, the application should demonstrate the commitment of partners and include a draft letter of intent that describes the roles, responsibilities, and contributions of each of the alliance partners.  You may also choose to ask your partners to submit documentation of their intent to participate in the alliance.  USAID recognizes that alliances may change over time.

Q:
In the RFA, are there any requirements regarding the hiring of volunteers to participate in our project?
A:
No.  The RFA does discuss Volunteers for Prosperity, a new volunteer-based initiative of the USA Freedom Corps designed to support major U.S. development initiatives overseas using the talents of highly skilled Americans who will work with U.S. organizations in countries around the world <http://www.volunteersforprosperity.gov>.  Consistent with this, USAID encourages the utilization and integration of volunteers, including those participating in Volunteers for Prosperity, as they may be appropriate in your programs.   

Q:
When will USAID resources become available and over what period will disbursements occur?  

A:
For those who receive funding, resources will become available late this fiscal year, or in some cases, early next fiscal year.  USAID expects that funded programs may last from 12 to 36 months (see page 8 of the RFA). 

Q:
Will USAID funding be available exclusively during 2004 or will it be disbursed over the timeline established for the project?
A:
If an application is accepted, USAID will award a grant or cooperative agreement to the institution proposing the alliance.  The officer negotiating the terms of the grant or cooperative agreement will determine with the grantee the appropriate timing for disbursement of funds from USAID.  Most of USAID’s programs are incrementally funded on a year-by-year basis until the award is fully funded.

Q:
Will USAID only allocate resources for the alliance or will it form a part of the alliance?
A:
USAID’s role will vary from alliance to alliance.  Please see page 14 of the RFA for an illustrative list of USAID and partner responsibilities.   

Q:
Does USAID perform the monitoring and evaluation of the project?


A:
As discussed above, USAID’s role will vary from alliance to alliance.  As part of its role in administering the grant or cooperative agreement, USAID will monitor goals and objectives primarily through review of the grantees periodic reporting (quarterly, semi-annually, or annually).  The agreement may also call for annual workplans to clarify timing and matters involved in the implementation schedule.  There may also be midterm and final evaluations.  All of the above will be negotiated in the final terms of the grant or cooperative agreement.

Q:
Is the agreement with USAID signed by all the members of the alliance or only with the lead partner?
A:
Upon favorable review of the full proposal, partners including USAID will determine the appropriateness of signing a memorandum of understanding (MOU) or other document to finalize the roles and responsibilities of each alliance partner.  The proposed lead recipient of USAID funds is the signing party to the grant or cooperative agreement. 

Q:  
Some friends and I are thinking about starting a small general store in New Mexico.  We are interested in getting a grant to help us start our business.  Is this grant something that we can apply for?
A:
USAID funding supports humanitarian and economic development programs overseas as part of U.S. foreign policy objectives.  I would recommend reviewing our web site further at <http://www.usaid.gov> to see whether the business you are developing intends to carry out work in any of the program areas and overseas locations noted.  Competitive grant solicitations from our agency and all federal agencies are at <http://www.fedgrants.gov>.  We do not fund the start up of a U.S. business per se, but do support specific development programs overseas.

